Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEeEEAER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note uss$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Land use rights + b 6 1,892 2,042
Property, plant and equipment W BB R&E 7 151,788 145,612
Intangible assets mIVEE 9 8,566 9,070
Long-term other receivables & B E b fE UK B 14 725 1,307
Investment in an associate REEE DR ZRE 11 6,119 3,555
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 169,090 161,586
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 13 91,102 82,868
Trade receivables EUE FEER 14 33,151 31,651
Short-term loan to an associate LTHE AR
REIE K 11, 34(d) 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables AT RIE R
H th & Ui 5118 14 13,465 9,351
Amount due from a related party EUAEREEBEALTRE  34(d) 1,191 242
Current income tax recoverable EHAR R B AR 1,241 2,872
Structured bank deposits HEEMERITER 15 8,888 3,903
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 15 15,342 16,063
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEY 15 34,215 49,679
Total current assets RBEEHE 198,715 196,749
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHECIERBDEE 8 - 366
Total assets EE#E 367,805 358,701
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners EATEE AEEER
of the Company
Share capital N 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves fE# 17 271,128 270,182
286,356 285,410
Non-controlling interest JEIE R AE = 326 (2,827)
Total equity ERBE 286,682 282,583
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E4F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5T FER FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 15,697 19,491
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHAE 20 3,238 3,263
Retirement benefit obligations BARBANEE 29 1,478 1,447
Long-term environmental provision REIR BB E 18 387 233
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBELAE 20,800 24,434
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables N E SRR 18 20,875 15,772
Accruals and other payables FERTE A K H
IR 18 16,874 17,509
Amounts due to related parties JERABEALRE 34 1,391 1,660
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 20,469 15,906
Current income tax liabilities EEAFFE I B E 714 837
Total current liabilities REBEEEHE 60,323 51,684
Total liabilities BEAH 81,123 76,118
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 367,805 358,701

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  Fill&raEEBEREERMBEM T —HEE-
with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 217 were #HWEVISE2ITEZ KR AT HKBRREN -F
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were —NAEZA -+ ~HEZESEH I HTIIA

signed on its behalf. TREESF-
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

B Rk

Director Director

BF EBEE
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HLEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
Note us$000 Us$’000
Bt 5T FEx FET
Revenue & 5, 21 356,772 322,805
Cost of sales 45 KA 23 (289,274) (254,668)
Gross profit ER 67,498 68,137
Other gains - net H Wz — 558 22 459 935
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHERAX 23 (23,117) (21,746)
Administrative expenses TR 23 (22,974) (24,272)
Operating profit RERF 21,866 23,054
Finance income B A 929 853
Finance costs B (832) (804)
Finance income — net WA —F5E 24 97 49
Share of post-tax profit of an associate E 11 B 2 1 A
GRATRES 11 44 205
Profit before income tax R AT 48 B A& F 22,007 23,308
Income tax expense FiB Bk 25 (4,613) (4,570)
Profit for the year KEERF 17,394 18,738
Profit attributable to: NT&HEMLER:
Owners of the Company RATRE A 14,285 19,061
Non-controlling interest FEFERR R = 3,109 (323)
17,394 18,738
Earnings per share for profit EATEBEAEEER
attributable to the owners of BRAZEREBF
the Company during the year (ABREMZR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share ERELXRR 27 0.94 1.25
Diluted earnings per share ERBEAER 27 0.94 1.25

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Aigr e Wan & R R AR R M At — GT RO E -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEeE2EWER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=t+—RHLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Uss$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Profit for the year REERF 17,394 18,738
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Htt2mE (F8) WA
Item that may be reclassified to AEFDHEEEE AR
profit or loss
Currency translation differences E R ERE (2,013) 2,054
Other comprehensive (loss)/income TEERBEHEMGEZT
for the year, net of tax (E#8]) WA (2,013) 2,054
Total comprehensive income AEETHEHKRALLE
for the year 15,381 20,792
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTEAFEGEREER2EAKBA
for the year attributable to: (E18)#A5E:
— Owners of the Company . WNEIEZ =N 12,228 21,290
- Non-controlling interest — IR E S 3,153 (498)
Total comprehensive income rEEXHERALE
for the year 15,381 20,792

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — Fil4ra 2 EUEE & EER BB E— G5 -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

KA RER AR
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity

Re  ROBE EXEE  GHBRE  iERE  REEN ai FRREER  EHER
Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us§'000 Us§'000
e e e e e e e TER e

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB-t5-A-8H

a3 15,228 47,358 10,885 79,994 783 127,287 281,535 (2,329) 279,206
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - 19,061 19,061 (323) 18,738
Other comprehensive income/ Hit2ERA (F8)

(loss)

Currency translation differences Eiz®E - - 2,229 - - - 2,229 (175) 2,054
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWA - (FE) 48 - - 2,229 - - 19,061 21,290 (498) 20,792

Total transactions with owners RREEAZERSE
Dividends (Note 26) i S (HizE26) - - - - - (17,415) (17,415) - (17,415)

Balance at 31 December 2017 RWZB2-tF+=A=+-H

Zie 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F-A-HzE&# 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - - 14,285 14,285 3,109 17,394
Other comprehensive (loss)/ 22 @ (FE) /BA

income

Currency translation differences EXZR - - (2,057) - - - (2,057) 44 (2,013)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (F#) MALE - - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228 3,153 15,381

Total transactions with owners BEBAZERZE
Dividends (Note 26) TR & (Fist6) - - - - - (11,280 (11,282) - (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENEEAERE - - - - 45 (45) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 WZ2-\F+=A=+-H
pA 1] 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  FilisrA RSB R EERIBBHE—HRE-
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Note us$000 Us$'000
B 5T FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZHRERE
Cash generated from operations ¥BEEZRS 31(a) 29,456 21,721
Interest paid B F B (1,106) (812)
Income taxes paid B FTER (3.116) (7,893)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBEEZ
activities e FRE 25,234 13,016
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant EEWE - KER&E
and equipment (23,636) (16,193)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE BE &
plant and equipment B2 TS RIA 31(a) 86 149
Proceeds from disposal of assets EEFELHEZ
held-for-sale BEZMSHE 8 411 1,360
Purchases of intangible assets BEERVEE 9 - (77)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits EHIRITE FOR 2 721 17,224
Increase in structured bank deposits EE MR FIE 00 (4,985) (3,903)
Interest received EJ%Z FE 888 790
Investment in an associate RNl 11 (2,520) -
Net cash used in investing activities KREFBAZ
ReFH (29,035) (650)
Cash flows from financing activities METBHz2RERE
Dividends paid 2K E 26 (11,282) (17,415)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMSENIA 48,045 27,987
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (47,269) (29,400)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBATAZ
ReFR (10,506) (18,828)
Net decrease in cash and cash ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@%
equivalents A E (14,307) (6,462)
Cash and cash equivalents at E@E%ﬂzfﬁi&
beginning of year REFED 15 49,679 55,210
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and RekBReEEMZ
cash equivalents b 5 (&18) s (1,157) 931
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REFRZ2EHER
RE%EY 15 34,215 49,679

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Fili4x
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

WABRE (ZEB)ERAR ([KAAF]) &
HfBERAR (B AKEDEEREE
BEEREHRIDANE  EERRKRER
WIXER SBEZUERY BEESE.
KR (KRBl HITRAAak (4R
Bel) - Emm DB EME KM REKE
BIZ - REARLME ([FRE]) BA-
RERZEBMNBERNERDHE B
BHRE ARRE #m SR IE
mAEER -

RARRPAERBEMKALBRA
ml o GEMTHF F R AL AP.O. Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands °

RARRBEMARIMEBRAR e

B A5 i HEBM B@mERIALT ([T
ErRIE-

RHREERFERNRREBE

REMSFEAMBRRFEABZEIEGET]
BEIWMT -BREEIRIN HEBERD
EHERARNMBEHRTFE

2.1 REEE
AEBNGRAVBRERDBEME
ERANEERBREEN ([EEH
BEER ) MR E R E M5 R
RIYARIBIE £ R AE P T AR 3 o

RETaBTEUBRERANES
MHBEAFEERETERNG
et MERBARAAEE 285
HEBREF TR ZELAE - P MR
EHER AR RE N 2 S5 - SRR M A
AEREMBHRRMSBERNZH
B AP LA 3R FR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

N

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)  New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new
standards, interpretations and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the Company for the

GHREXARFESIRREE (1)

21 mEEE(HE)

(a)

KEFRAZATER ERZ
EET AR it B

AEENR -FT-N\F—H—H
P62 B B S B IR AT
7R B RSB B BR AR 2 AR )

first time for the financial year beginning on 1

January 2018:

Annual Annual Improvements 2014
Improvements — 2016 Cycle
Project
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
(Amendment) and Joint Ventures
HKAS 40 Transfers of
(Amendment) Investment Property
HKFRS 1 First time adoption of HKFRS
(Amendment)
HKFRS 2 Classification and
(Amendment) Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(Amendment)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency

Transactions and
Advance Consideration

BEREAZERA:

EEYERE —E-mEE
—E-RE
BHZFE
it
BRGRAELR RBELAR
(BFIR) BELER
kB
BRI ENFAN BERENE
(BFIA)
BEANBREEN  FRAGKEE
£15% (B35 K) MBEE
]
EANBREEN  ABRBBER
£25% (BFIK) BEGIEY
ZHBR
HE
ERUBHREEN  RBREH
F4% (BFTX)
EANBREEN SRIA
295
ERUBREEN RARFAEH
£15% pdl &
B (EPREs NEZ S RTE
HREZEE)  NRE
£225

Impact on the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
are set out in Note 2.2. The adoption of other new
and amended standards and interpretation did not
have any material impact on the current period or
any prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIETHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
(b) The following new standards, interpretations and b) NTAREBERMEBLIENR_F

amendments to standards have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018 and have not been early adopted.

—N\F—A—BRBZHBE
JE AR B IR LR AR 2 3
R RERERZIERT -

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

RTHHEER
ZEBERZ
FEHBEX

Annual Improvements
Project 2017
TE-+FFEBEER

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)
SEEAEIREES
Jr—iEE'JTﬁ&JT( SR A)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BEGFERIE19%
(BETA)
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

HBE R ERFE28%

(fEET )
HKFRS 9 (Amendment)
BBM G REERNEIN
(BETAR)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BB IS WS ERE35
(BETA)
HKFRS 16
BEMBRELERNE
HKFRS 17
BB WS ERE175%
HK (IFRIC) 23
?%(IW%%&
; = ) 5’%237}%
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

AN B EEAE105% &
EHE &R 285
CEHEN)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

—E-N\FHBRE
B tEZR

165%

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

—E-RFE_T—+F
HE TR s

Definition of Material
BAKEE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

FHEIEET - #ER B

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
EEENFREEhED
REE S
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

BB ENRSETTE

Definition of Business

KHEER

Leases

BE

Insurance Contract

Fwga#

Uncertalnty over Income Tax Treatments

FRSTIRR IR 2 T HE 2 1t

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
WEFEABE NF R
BEEZHN
BEHESEE
Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

(EFT s HmE BRI

1 January 2019
—T-nFE—HA—H
1 January 2020
—E-ETF—A—H
1 January 2019
~NE—F—8
1 January 2019
—h&—HA—H

1 January 2019

—h¥—HA—H
1 January 2020
i
1 January 2019
—ZE-NAF—A—H
1 January 2022
—E-__Ff—A—H
1 January 2019
—T-nFE—-—HA—H

To be determined

FEE

1 January 2020

—E-TF—HA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

(b)

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and have not been early adopted.
(continued)

The directors of the Company has assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption
of the above new standards, amendments and
interpretations. Except for HKFRS 16, there are no
other standards that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the futures reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions. The Group intends
to adopt the above new standards, amendments
and interpretation to existing standards when they
become effective.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will

result in almost all leases being recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of US$2,871,000, see Note 32.
The Group estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value lease which will be
recognised on straight line basis as an expense in
profit or loss are insignificant.
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(b)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTETHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)

UTROBRMEIIENR_-F
—NF—A—BHBZHEK
FREEXN BMERARA L
R REBRERZER -
(#®)

ARRIESC RN LA
E AR EHARE
ZHBEE -RREMBRE
HERIF 1657 5N - B H A 15 R
HE T T8 B S 0 R 2R e B
HAEEARAT R ARARZ HiE
REARFE ZER - NEE
Pt R AR R LA Ko 3R A R 2
B AT 2R K i B R RS T AR
4o

BEVBREERIF 1655
(5]

EEE
BEMBREENF16ER =
E-RNE-ARMG-EBRE
BABHIHERGAEERE
REER - L RN EEHE R
MEMRE ZBOERIWE S -
REFHTER BE (EHRHE
SEHEAMEN) RXNEEMN
THABATHRR K-
SMER R EEEHEE -

BEETBHRELENE 165K
FTEYEATELERENS
EE-N—E-NFE+ A
=+— 8 AEBEAT A
T & E 52,871,000
70 (RMIFE32) - AEE BT
B35 A E AR B R AR
THESREEERENFE
FANZESRELTEKN-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIETHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
(b) The following new standards, interpretations and b) NTAREBERMEBLIENR_F

amendments to standards have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and have not been early adopted.
(continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

Nature of change (continued)

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary, for example,
the change in the definition of the lease term, the
different treatment of variable lease payments and
the extension or termination options. It is therefore
not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities that will have to be
recognised on adoption of the new standard and
how this may affect the Group’s profit or loss and
classification of cash flows going forward.

The directors of the Company expect that the
impact on the Group's financial positions regarding
the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy would not be material.
However, some additional disclosures will be
required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use
assets for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been
applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability on
adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

—NF—A—BHKBZHRK
FREAEXR BEREARAL
AR REBRERZER -
(#)

BAMBEREENE 165
(A& (&)

2yits (&)

AL E AR FEAFEL AR
i (mE) - flan- HEH
MR ZBIAR A EHENK
B MR R R e N R R
3o UL - 1A K BE AT R R A
AT 7 Bl B 0 ZR R R O 8 R A
BENMAEBBSEANES
AR A B M B
ARBREREDE -

ARREEEHEE e
WIRL  RMB B BERE L
AIFE16RE A LR 2 BN
BT EERERTE AR
B T FEBAELE TRINE

=

AEE XM B H

AEE K A ER 2R HIRA A
H(ZF-NAF-A—-H)K
RZERI - RE B AL
BEL BN & 55 EIRR
MR —FZ L REE - MEA
SZEAEEERNEERG
EOFMHFRR —HEER-
PR E i A #E & E R IR R
M2 HEBEDENE (R
TEENLEAHERSRA

») o

1iE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements.

(a)  Impact on the financial statements
The following explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassifications
and the adjustments are therefore not reflected in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 January 2018.

There is no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as at 1 January 2018, except for the
reclassifications of receipt in advance to contract
liabilities in Note 18.

(b)  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
9(7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative figures have
not been restated.

There is no impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREERFERRREE (1)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2.2 BEEBE#F (F)
(b)  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) (b) BB FREERE N[22/

(i)

(i)

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9
categories. On the date of initial application,
1 January 2018, the financial instruments of
the Group were measured at amortised cost,
with no reclassification noted.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for each of these classes of assets. There
is no impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings and equity. For details, please refer
to Note 3.1(b)(ii).

TAJ (%)

(i)

(ii)

DIEREE

R=—ZF-NF—HA—H
(RBMBREERS
IR ERERBH)
AEBZERECM
ERARAEEMFL®
EEZEBRARCH
HeRTAIHESRS
s E LR F I 2 @
EEMN-RBEXERA
H(ZZ-NF—H—
B) AEBEze@TA
WEERATE WE
B

TREERE

AEBERERRBREEYE
WMELERIBORER ZE
BEREEZRMETT L.
WMETEBEHHALE
Z AR BN I HE a5 B
TE -BRFE F2H

B 3E3.1(b)(i) °
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(c)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customer”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies. In
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has adopted the simplified transition
method and did not restate the comparatives. In
summary, there is no adjustment or reclassification
to the amounts recognised in the balance sheet
at the date of initial application (1 January 2018),
except for a reclassification for the following:

2 GREERFFEHHREE (W)

22 BEABE#F (H)

() BEYFIHREENEIST XK
BEFPEHZ Wz
REFEAE-_T—N\FE—A
—BERRABTBV B HREE
A1 [REEFEH 2K
wl HEREHAHRET-
RRE B ERSHERE 155
ZHEE S AR BB RN
LB % B R g EA R H
FoBEMS BTIEEZ
BHFHMEIN RERERAH
—E-N\F-A—RB)ZEBE
BEXREAZCEREETA

B EHDHR:
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification 2018
BERY
EEGTER BEER
1855 SE1585%
REE REE
—E—+F —E-N\F
+=HB=+—-8H bkl —RA—H
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$’000
T=1 S FET
(Restated)
(&=57)
Trade payables, accruals EEZ KRN
and other payables EstERAR
(extract) H b PB4 700E (EFE)
Receipts in advance AWK IE (MzE18) 1,296 (1,296) -
(Note 18)
Contract liabilities AHNEME(ME18) - 1,296 1,296
(Note 18)
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REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RREERFERRREE (1)

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2 EBIBESH (H)

(c)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (c) BEMBREEDEISG [
Customer” (continued) AEFEAZ W) (5E)
Presentation of assets and liabilities related to 2IEBEEFAHNZEERE
contracts with customers f&

The Group has voluntarily changed the presentation REEE BRRASE B AT
of certain amounts in the note to the financial NZzeETLBNEMIELE
statements to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15 2R LA S BR S B 7% R 5 E A
and HKFRS 9: FISHREBLHBRELE
95k 2 EFIMI &5
e Contract liabilities in relation to receipts . FHEERERZINETE
in advance from customers for sales of FZHEEMERE R
goods not yet delivered to customers, were HzEHBEENZY
previously presented as receipts in advance in RERNE SRR KL EA
trade and other payables (US$1,296,000 as at JI& = 3R I8 H By TR FRIE
1 January 2018). (R=ZZFE—-—N\F—H—H
#1,296,000%7T) °
2.3 Subsidiaries 23 KMIEBAA
2.3.1 Consolidation 2.3.1 486

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the

MEARIAASBEHESES
BEHENER (BRARIEE
B MAEEARENESR
2EER A EOIRAER N E
N ARFEREHZEREZ
RN AR B A BE I R - B
ERTHERE-MERARS
HIEF#EZETAEEERE
RAEAR LRERERLEE
BizlLiRE Ak

(@) XBap
REBRBWEETE
EBEH - WBHEQ
AMEERERIEE
EE WUWETAESR

assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to EMELEBBERAEE
the former owners of the acquiree and the PN N /NS
equity interests issued by the Group. The E-FMEZREREX
consideration transferred includes the fair AREBLHEENEM
value of any asset or liability resulting from EESBEHRTE:
a contingent consideration arrangement. NG OF I P I E 59
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and Al BRI EE RFTAER

contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

BERIARAE T
BUE R WA FER

=
=-°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

2

RHREERFERRREE (])

23 KMBLE (&)
231456 (#)

(a)

XBaot (&)

BEAE WEBELE
o] 2E 42 i 7 28 2 B8 N 3B
ERMFRRE T RER
WEBHZAFERL
FTEARI BRI FEER
FEZBIEREEA
fRo iR E CER
ZHERERREAE
Z B PR R et 2 AR A
1K 38 (B BB P Ui
MEBARBEEFEZR
FE BEHEEREESR

G Wk 3R b AR ©

SHANRRIRR S 4
BREBANRRRR
22 RBH WG T8
HoMRIEFTRZ HRM
CHEREELRBEZ
BB GARERER
TEHH - MmEFE M
BRAZH SEEL
M UEAEEZ
BRTBR— 2

W B G B HEE E 2 I
BAREAERENLE
SRR AR A ETT M D
BEUKETHR LR
HARIEHER 5
BB ARHEASH
HETZRZMEMEH
REZ R FERRHE
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTETHRFEE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

23 MEBAR (E)
23146 (&)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.4), or financial
asset (Note 2.11). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements of the Company

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

132 vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ EIBS (2 8%) AR AR

(0 HEHBAF
i A< S (3 B 7 B 12
BOENRZERZER
REE @B REES
BERRHELNFEEN
e mikmEEEHa
REBEETER -LER
AR EEE 2 2~ F (M
F2.4) KB EE (M
H2AN) ZRE ST
FAVEENKRER
Beubsh AR E M
2HPWANEREZE
BEREZEMNSBERN
MASBECERKESR
MEEXERAZIAA
FR-ERREBERELM
FEE b 2 WA N FER
ZeREMORER

ﬁo

232 XARNE]ZHEIHFERKX

TAHT R 2 Bl 2 3B AR AR
BFRR - RAGEL R U
RERESAREBETMESZ
REZYH RATREEERE
HZRERA -MEREZE
AR RHRRE & R IR
HEEAK

A% B 2R M8 A R AE TR
SHEZEZEBRALRE i
BIMBHRANEE 2 FHE
BBREED 2 FEE (BF
BEI)RGAVBHRR KR
B AERBRIME AR ZEK
BB R RHEEREET
BRI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

2

RHREERFERRREE (])

2.4

BE AT
BENREMEAEEHEGEXR
SR BEIEIE B FTiiE
BEB20%E50% 2 5 ZHE o
BRRl 2B NG EAR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Associates (continued)

2.5

2.6

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUBERFEEHBEHE (])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.6 SNEBRE (E)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances b) XKXZREH
Foreign currency transactions are translated into INERZ GRS REFTE
the functional currency using the exchange rates HEZHEEB 2 RITEXRKR
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or ERNEES - WX 54
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign R M R DA SN R
exchange gains and losses resulting from the BrEBEERBEMEELZ
settlement of such transactions and from the HMNEU Z 3K B 1E - R R A
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary HRAER ERERNEL
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign ERAERBSREMEHR R
currencies are recognised in the consolidated BB FIRAEME RN
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented FTBEIEREBREGERER
in the consolidated income statement within “other AE [Eml=—Fmd 2
gains — net”. 3l o

(c)  Group companies (c) ZEEFHIA]

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

AEBMAER (APAUBME
MRARFABRERE 2 EBEE
R2EB)NBRREREE
A—H 2zt EE - HEEM
BEARIGIIA T ITEBRE R
E2HER:

-~ assets and liabilities for each balance sheet - BEHAEBERZEAE
presented are translated at the closing rate at LBEHERERZEERA
the date of that balance sheet; BEREEB ZBEEX

&,
- income and expenses for each income - BBEREXRZWARX

statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of

15 4% 08 15 BE KT
BoRRIFFULFHE XK
EAREMRRERSH

the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, ZHRITEERMTR R
in which case income and expenses are A HRBRZ5H
translated at the rate on the dates of the ZERFEWFRARN
transactions); and X R
— all resulting exchange differences are - MMEAZMEAERZER
recognised in other comprehensive income. ¥ 7 A At 2 T WA R B
7

5y
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mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RHREERFERRREE (])

2.7 Property, plant and equipment, land use rights 2.7 V¥ -BERRE L ERE

2.8

(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Intangible assets

(a)  Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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mEMBHRME

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIETHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (continued) 28 B|IEEE (&)
(a)  Goodwill (continued) (@) BEE(E)
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken HEBEEFETRERS T
annually or more frequently if events or changes WA EHE IR SE R R ER
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. AR RER (FRHESER
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the AT - B EBRE(E M AT g E €
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value % (AMEAEERED T ERE
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any ERARzREE)ELER-F
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense RENRERARS  BE
and is not subsequently reversed. BT ERE -
(b)  Trademarks and licence b) BERERE
Separately acquired trademarks and the licence, ABRERFAFH2 B
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost B 7 TR I SR BRI B AR R 5T
less accumulated amortisation and impairment B ROBEREAR B
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- FMABGETE UBEER
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and BB AR EERFETHM
licence over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 TR R FEERNEIT DB
years.
(c) Computer software (c) EBISEANM
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised BANE M ERIBERES
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and K AF FARZ S & B AT Ol R A AX
bring to use the specific software. These costs are RER - GRAK AL H A5
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 AAFEnFEE-
years.
2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 FHMBEEZREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 BREERTETHHRBE (A)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale 210 BEH#EZHRBEE
Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale FRBEEDEERAAEREZ®
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally BEERSMIEBBIFEGEH TN
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing Iem - BERAHBE AL ER - 91
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are AEEHEEE WIREABERQT
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less BREEXNAME 2 BIEREIER-
costs to sell.

2.11 Financial assets 211 BB EE
2.11.1 Classification 2.11.1 7248

The Group classifies its financial assets as debt
instruments to be measured at amortised cost.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.14),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.15), amount
due from a related party, short-term loan to an
associate, short-term bank deposits, structured
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

ARBEREMBEEDERE
BB AFEZEBTA-

BEHIA RS EE  EBR
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EHRERIERDEE -AE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

GHREXARFESIHRREE (&)

211 BI%EE (&)
2.11.2 HERR R AR UL AR

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable

2113

MHEEFREENR S A
RoRAREEAEBEREE
ZEEBRH-MBEERE
B ER DR E H I E R
SEHBENAEECDE RS
REEV AR BB ) [\ B % [ 3 i 4% 1

iE
B R0 R BRI
AEz AFE(WHBAEY
S AT @A BS) B K
WA B AEAEEL Y RPN

to the acquisition of the financial asset. Rt EMHEEE -
Debt instruments BB TA

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

Financial assets at amortised cost are assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTETHRFREE (8)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 MBEE (&)

2.11.4 Impairment 2.11.4)% (&

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis NEEREARETGELE
the expected credit losses associated with its B AR IR 2 E TR
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The ZTEEBEEEE TR A 2R
impairment methodology applied depends on EREETEERBEEEXR
whether there has been a significant increase in 08 3% JN0 i JE ° BT 5 3. 1(b) ¥ it
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group rEEEEEERBREGSEA
determines whether there has been a significant TEIE Nz Ok e

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the HEREZERMNE  ~N&E
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which HRABEBBIREEAFIR
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised RFZEEHE HBRERY)
from initial recognition of the receivables. FER BRI ERES2
HEE-

For other receivables, short-term loan to an BEMERTIE 44 THER
associate and amount due from a related party, the RIZEHERREREREA
impairment provision is determined based on the T RIEME RERER
12-month expected credit losses. BREREHEEBIEETE
When measuring expected credit loss, the Group REERHEEBER K&
considers both historial default rate and forward- B B E R A E R AR E
looking information. ¥ho
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as
loans and receivables, based on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables (Note 2.14), cash
and cash equivalents (Note 2.15), amount
due from a related party, short-term loan
to an associate, short-term bank deposits,
structured bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREXRTETHRFEEE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

211 BREE (%E)
2115 BEF —

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘Other gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group's right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(iii)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(iii)

Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2017 and
2018.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUHEBERFEEHBREE (H])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
220 EMRIEEAMESH (&)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 BREERTETHHRBE (A)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.21 Employee benefits 221 EEEA
(a)  Pension obligations (a) RUAKZEMT

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

GHREXARFESIHRREE (&)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 EERA (&)

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) EUN=ZEF (&)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, RErE W EmR AN ZE BRI
recognised in the consolidated income statement in X HER 2 FE R ET E B E
employee benefit expense, except where included ARG RCA (T AEB ERAE R
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the SN RIEAREE R E REE
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee EzRERBMWETEN @
service in the current year, benefit changes, BE) BB REE
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in B R TS Ak AN BD B 7E 48 A R
profit or loss. o
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays AR EHEARGTEME  AEE
contributions to publicly or privately administered MAAERLAREERZR
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, R BT SIEH R 6 & 4k
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no B RE MR e I S AT KR
further payment obligations once the contributions AEBBEEMNREE H#
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as TR BB TR A& B 1A
employee benefit expense when they are due. IR

(b)  Termination benefits (b) AR F)

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTETHRFREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 EERAR (&)

2.22

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee Jeave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22

(c) JEATEME
ARBERE—HRAN (BEA
REIRER BN L AL T
BiE) LA ERAELRRA
X AEEREHREIBAE
BRELETETHER
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product is on board
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

No contract liability and right to the returned goods
are recognised as insignificant amount of returns
are expected based on previous experience.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREXRTETHRFEEE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.23 Revenue and other income recognition (continued) 2,23 BRAKEREMKA (&)

(b)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective

(b)  FEHKA

P B WA KA B RN BOERE
fEl b ) EL RS 1T AR © i B 3K
REKBRREERE  NEE
SRERERZEEEEH@DR
TERBEBEMEZ HEHHIR
RERE MK T Z AU E K

RBOWHRERBRITBERTE
WA - REERRERERZ
FIE AT AR BB FI = 2

interest rate. e

(c)  Dividend income (c) REMA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to T 7 L WCER R 0E 7 RE A - iR
receive payment is established. BT AR

2.24 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases) 224 HE (FAKLEHEY Zﬁ?ﬂk)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and NEBEZBRE D &@iﬁ&l
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are ﬁfﬁ/\ﬁ pitFOR i"] iﬁﬁi‘“
classified as operating leases. Payments made under B o EEE 2R (?Dﬂﬁfﬂ}\m

2.25

operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

2.25

%Z&HEE& ) IR B EENEA
ANE SRRt AR A WER A

P33 =N
DIRFARBBRRZEEEARRE
BoREEE (REAEER) HARE
ZHIREA  WAEE AR R Z 8
BATHRBRAE-

RBERRENEE Y HRRER
ET#MEAXTRZBEEBIES
FRBEERE B TERMERR
EEDUEE\1 °

2.26 Financial guarantees 2.26 MEHER
Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group REBFREITMBEREGRAYSE
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to ZhHAEEARRE I”é'ﬁ’ff-iriﬂ_ﬁﬁ
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified EARRFRE AR ARG
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner ZH_WWEM%_E" h$%@ﬁ—f
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised BEIREZEREABEML  UEE

when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

“ﬁ?ﬁf&ﬁﬁ BAOEE R e A
AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.27 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi
against US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations, which the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$663,000 (2017: US$1,246,000) lower/
higher (2017: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2018, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$6,000 (2017: US$18,000) lower/higher
(2017: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of non-Renminbi-denominated trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other payables in subsidiaries
which use RMB as functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$21,349,000 (2017: US$17,427,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$14,817,000
(2017: US$17,970,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$91,000 (2017: US$74,000) lower/higher
(2017: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, short-term loan to an
associate, other receivables and amount due from
related parties.

(i) Risk management
The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivables,
short-term loan to an associate, amount due
from a related party and other receivables
included in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2018 and 2017, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 15 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The adoption of the simplified
expected loss approach under HKFRS 9 has
not resulted in any additional impairment loss
for trade receivables as at 1 January 2018.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 month before 31 December 2018
or 1 January 2018 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be the
most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in this factor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.

As at 31 December 2018, 1 January
2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) and 31
December 2017, the loss allowances for
trade receivables were US$498,000 and
US$511,000, respectively. Management are
of opinion that that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. Individual receivables
which were known to be uncollectible
were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. For these receivables the
estimated impairment losses were recognised
in a separate provision for impairment. The
group considered that there was evidence of
impairment if any of the following indicators
were present:

o significant financial difficulties of the
debtor

o probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and

o default or late payments (more than 30
days overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment provision
was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

Other receivables, loan to an associate and
amount due from a related party

The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(c)

3 HMBEERRTEHE(H)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMEEBEZ (&)
Liquidity risk (c) mEEREE
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s HRAREEEBRNEREF 1T
business, the Group ensures that it maintains B OASEBREAFTEER
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity e REERUENERBES
requirements. wmke
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the ERERBEHRSRE B
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn BEAEENRSEHHNR
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents FIEAl AREEEBRIERD
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's BEEREMNRE KRS EEY
policy is to reqularly monitor current and expected R -AEEFTEBRE  EH
liquidity requirements and its compliance with ERAAREBZABEST
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains KR EEFIEREZE 2B
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed DA R EL 4 15 TR 48 38 & b 1 DA
lines of funding from major financial institutions MEEZZUBREAGERER
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and WES UENHEEHERRE
longer term. HrznsEeHke
The table below analyses the Group’s financial THRBREEBZALEIH
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based B THREEAEE B 5 A
on the remaining period at the balance sheet B AABLHAERNETY
date to the contractual maturity date. The M-RERFRBEZSHERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HRFERERE
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Between

Tyear 1and2years 2and5years  Over 5 years Total

-FR  -FE@E  WEEEF BELE &it

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

FEL FET TE£x TE£x TET
At 31 December 2018 RZIE-N\F

+zZA=t-8
Bank borrowings (Note) RITRE (M) 21,007 8,280 8,340 - 37,627
Trade payables H”’%EE 20,875 - - - 20,875
Other payables and accruals 31’@7 E&ﬁﬁgﬁ 7,056 - - - 7,056
Amount due to a related party ,\H*ﬁ'ﬁéﬁ)\i i 1,391 - - - 1,391
At 31 December 2017 RZE—<f
+zZA=t-8

Bank borrowings (Note) FITEE (M) 16,256 9,161 10,195 1,200 36,812
Trade payables H”’%EE 15,772 - - - 15,772
Other payables and accruals 31’@7 ﬁ&ﬁfgﬁ 8,860 - - - 8,860
Amounts due to related parties JT%HEEE@)\i i 1,660 - - - 1,660
Note: M

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings
up to their respective maturities.

FHHEBERBESIHAMR
THEERNZFE -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

During 2018, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2017, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were
as follows:

MERBRED (&)

3.2 BXERE
AEEERES CABRARBAE
BB ERELE 2N U
RERTREMBRESEBEERE
ANERNE AR RBEZERLE
BIAR D BEAKA

BT HEFLREEERER  AEET
BERABIRN THRERZBRES R Ak

BRERER BIIHBRNAHEEE
AR SR B 75 -

HENEMAR K AEENEE
BELERSERERER R XE
HAEBEERBERMRZBRITEER
BRABEE AR E - REE B
nBEEMRBEER-

MZE—N\F AEEZERE-T
—tEMRMEERG B DHERFE
EBELERREEKFE - RZZ—N
FERZFT—+EFF+ZA=+—HBZ

EEBELENT:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+5F

US$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Total bank borrowings (Note 19) BIRTTEE (KIFE19) 36,166 35,397
Owners’ equity (including non- HE AR (B

controlling interest in equity) ez R ) 286,682 282,583

Gearing ratio BEEBELX 13% 13%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The carrying value of the long-
term other receivables approximates its fair value as it
was estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).

3

MBERBER (&)

3.3 DPEME
EREWE 5 8RR M W RIR
LA Ko FE A5 5 5 B 0 I L Ath 8 A 3RIR
EREBEE  AEBREERERER
BEREREAFERES REHEM
e R IR 2 IR {E S E AP ERE
WTARRETEBIRAEB AU
TRTAABZRITHHNERER
RERAEHREREMET -

EEgF AR

AR R A B s N ER IR E L &5 R E A
ZETHE ERESBATHERAE
ZARREFTER

AEB PR AT RRE - REBE
EE G ANFSHZ G A E D HIAR
EREEER - TXHAmEBARRYET
—HBRFENEEREBEZREEFHE
RBBZ A RE&-

(a) FEEHMGERE
AEEBFHREMI20MENE
SABEANRE  AEBBEE MBS
R(E - SRR £ B e A i El £ 5
CRREABENE -FTEBERS
ZE A R HIE (FE9) -
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam, Taiwan and Cambodia. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.
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(b)

(c)

EMRERRELEREH

AEBERYMTE BE- 5B LR
FERAFTISIR - INHETE 2RISR
ERENREE  AREAELREX
A - HZ X5 RETEB RS
FERBE IR - REBAMF K
K BHMBINGIR K iEREIE
HRBEREELEE - WREFE
ZEBPHRERAENAR S &8
TR ZEERBE ERBEE MR
ZEMRBEEBHEERAE:

HEEBERAARKERK BT A
EHHETREEELRBBIERN T
PRE - AeEREE TEREE
REWZELEMBREERREAR
18 o i TR HIAS R ELR S5 2 (B FH TR
FHEReHBRMATHRES
HEANELEHRBEEERRFRAX
ZHERBRE -

hEEER
AEBEREBZMEEBCERE
ZEBRLEMAEZ I 2R EREE
o EBAAKEEERIEELR
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REMBRRHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments,
and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, and segment liabilities are
based on the geographical location of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$43,301,000 (2017:
US$45,843,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue (2017: same).

SEHBREH

TEEERARECHMEREENTES-
WITESEEHNAEEZBERENERIATZ
RERDEER AKBREBEETZLER
REMEHLARFIERTREZEHZ
FIEEAEES (AT - IEFEHRERE
Dbl A EEARZH DHEBEE 2 AP
SERBEE (CRIERIN RoHakE-

FELERAFEFEWMEFE YT EE
%o NGB ERELEZ MA R - 5 UL
mABRPHTWESID D HPERT L -

NEEE - HEHERDEE(eRIT AR
I EHHBEBEAAEESBEREME

e

BLERARELIZRERMED BBAE
EZH&Z sREmEEF[ERE At 2o
MRRERNBEER -

& P 49643,301,000% 70 (— & —+
£ 145,843,000k L) ARE AR &
INBEF - RBREZRAERE BEES
HoBEEMEREEEBASEE S
10%A L (ZF—CF - 4EA) -

(a) Segment revenue (a) W=

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
US$'000 Us$’000
SFEER FET

By geographical location: B IR E 8l
Vietnam e 177,753 162,986
Japan HZ 63,015 64,199
The PRC F 39,004 29,056
America xH 20,327 16,761
Taiwan (= 17,335 10,630

ASEAN member countries REKE

(other than Vietnam) (e ¥EE) 31,593 31,792
Other regions H i [ 7.745 7,381
356,772 322,805
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEHEH (])
(a) Segment revenue (continued) (a) Wz (&)
2018 2017
=Z2-N\F —E—+1F
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
By product nature: BEMMEESE D :
MSG/GA NN 231,502 220,491
Modified starch/Native starch B S RABGD 43,955 34,005
Specialty chemicals FEE® 32,552 29,012
Fertiliser and feed products AE &R K} EE o 21,165 18,425
Others HA 27,598 20,872
356,772 322,805
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$°000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Timing of revenue recognition Uit 55 B SR i
At a point in time PR — B2, 356,772 322,805
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BE R B EHERZ Wa
The Group receives payments from certain customers REBERBETEHNNKDRETER
in advance of the performance under the contracts. ZIER IR o TR R EE R AN A B e
The following table shows how much of the revenue ReWamEgEENaE 2 BRRE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to g

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Year ended

31 December
2018

Bz
—E-N\F
t=A=+-8
IHEE
US$’000

TER

Revenue recognised that was AFEVENBELR
included in the contract liabilities ZBEERBA
balance at the beginning
of the year 1,296
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Fe R RMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHE(E)
(b) Capital expenditures (b) EAERZH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
USs$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam e 25,396 20,404
The PRC F 121 135
Cambodia P 3 -
25,520 20,539
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on BALH T IREEETAM M5 R
where the assets are located. EEDEPe

(c)

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant

v

EAXHBREREDE BERR

and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. W TwERERETEE-
Assets () ¥BE
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —T+F
Us$'000 Us$’000
FTER FET
Vietnam [on] 308,623 288,357
The PRC R 45,544 48,424
Hong Kong B 12,358 21,188
Taiwan = 704 688
Singapore Hrnig 487 44
Cambodia R 89 -
Total assets per consolidated FEAERBRMR
balance sheet BERE 367,805 358,701

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where

the assets are located.

ANy °

BEBEDNRBEEMTHN DK
EEDHb

7]
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Assets (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation,

(%}

SWRE (#)

(c)

BE (&)

WE BEMRIBHEEERNEED
BEMER - U TRESEED N

LS

RBEEHE WE RE MEHR

impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense MBS AR aMNAIME-
and share of profit of an associate for each operating
segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax profit of
depreciation expense an associate
iRy N
B RITE Frie BB X s A
UsS$’000 Us$’000 US$’000
TEIL TET TEL
2018 —E-NEF
Vietnam =] 17,648 4,361 44
The PRC H 965 242 -
Others HA - 10 -
18,613 4,613 44
2017 —EAF
Vietnam =] 17,182 4,125 205
The PRC R 1,183 433 -
Others H b - 12 -
18,365 4,570 205
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Fe R RMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHE(E)
(d) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments, (d) BRUBEIZ2FRBEE (SRMIE

by location: BRS¢
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —tF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Vietnam i) 151,333 141,501
The PRC F 17,029 18,778
Cambodia R 3 -
Total st 168,365 160,279

(e) Liabilities (e) &fE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
US$'000 us$'ooo
FEx F=ET
Vietnam jiAEa) 72,860 65,768
The PRC A 3,751 4,604
Hong Kong BB 3,338 3,316
Taiwan = 1,108 2,382
Singapore Froansg 46 48
Cambodia RIFE 20 -
Total liabilities per consolidated REEEBERMT

balance sheet BEMATE 81,123 76,118
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

X b {E A 4
AEBRNLHEREZERRELERNZ
A HERmREATAT

2018 2017
=t WYY o
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January w—A—8 2,042 2,321
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) + b {5 R 6E
(PfFzT23) (52) (61)
Transfer to non-current HEBEERELEZ
assets held for sale (Note 8) EmEEE (KIFE8) - (360)
Exchange differences EHE%E (98) 142
At 31 December H+ZA=+—H 1,892 2,042

In respect of the Group's land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan"”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BERRME
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
HEIR nE BERESR RE  BAERE At
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTER S FEn FTER TEn TEn
At 1 January 2017 RZB-t5-F—-H
Cost A 7,243 109,735 439,123 9,046 18,945 584,092
Accumulated depreciation ZHE - (73,977) (338,552) (6,453) (17,640) (436,622)
Accumulated impairment ZitHE - (1,100 (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount EEZE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-2—tF
+ZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEREFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Additions "B 15,535 68 3,864 447 548 20,462
Transfer EH (11,425) 1,473 9,876 - 76 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (Ki7E31) - (107) (341) (30) (11) (489)
Depreciation (Note 23) wE (Mz23) - (3,012) (14,149) (652) (357) (18,170)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERELEERDEE
held for sale (Note 8) (BiFE8) - - - (5) (1) (6)
Exchange differences EREE 3 395 125 21 8 552
Closing net book amount FREMFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
At 31 December 2017 RZB-—LF
+=A=+-8
Cost AR 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Year ended 31 December 2018 Hz-2-)\F
tTZA=Zt+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Additions RE 22,628 152 1,875 410 455 25,520
Transfer B (15,332) 1,868 13,272 - 192 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (FF31) - (30) (436) (5) (1) (512)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (f1723) - (3,386) (14,114) (583) (346) (18,429)
Exchange differences EREE m (305) (79) (15) €)] (403)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+=A=+-8
Cost A 18,651 108,862 460,387 9,322 19,749 616,971
Accumulated depreciation : - (75,988) (359,923) (7,141) (17,924) (460,976)
Accumulated impairment - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REZE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788

Annual Report 2018 3% 173



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of US$17,220,000 (2017:
US$16,878,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$267,000
(2017: US$240,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$942,000 (2017: US$1,052,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$274,000 (2017: US$143,000) on qualifying
assets.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 5 September 2017, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, to dispose of its land use right and property,
plant and equipment for a total consideration of US$645,000
(RMB4,352,000). The relevant land use rights and property,
plant and equipment amounted US$360,000 and US$6,000
respectively were presented as non-current assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2017. The transaction was completed
during 2018.
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7

ME-BER®M (E)

WER 17,220,000 (T —+ 4
16,878,000% T ) * 267,000% T (= =
— -+ % :240,0003 7T) %942,0003K 7T
(== —+4:1,052,000% 70) & 7 Bl R
HERA - HERSHATUARITHAX
R e

FR - AEBERAEREENEERXK
ZK274,000%F 0 (ZF — £ F 1 143,0003%
JC) BEFTE A o

BrEHSEERRTEHEE
RZZE—+tENAFAEB WEKAZEIE
EEBRARBE-—ZBBIUE=FFIN—
i 4R (645,000 (AR
4,352,0007T0) HEE T F ALY
¥ BMELEHE RZTE—LF+=A
=+—H 2% 5 5 A360,000E T &
6,0003 7T 2 MR8 T HbfFE FAE A M EE - B
ERZEE RN AFELGEIRDERE-
ZRGERZE— \FR-e
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FREMBEHRRME
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HmEEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
e BHhRER i At
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000
TEn FTEX TER FTER
At 1 January 2017 RZB-t%-B-H
Cost B 8,042 1,931 12,189 22,162
Accumulated amortisation REt B - (1,388) (12,097) (13,485)
Net book amount EEFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-+tF
+TZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONERFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Additions RE - 77 - 77
Amortisation charge (Note 23) B2 (523) - (124) (10) (134)
Exchange differences ERER 450 - - 450
Closing net book amount FREBFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tf
+=ZB=+-H
Cost A 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation REHH - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount FEFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\&F
+-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONERFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge (Note 23) R (ME23) - (122) (10) (132)
Exchange differences ErESE (372) - - (372)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
+=B=+-8
Cost PR 8,120 2,008 12,189 22,317
Accumulated amortisation Rt EH - (1,634) (12,117) (13,751)
Net book amount FEFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BRI AITHRA X
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’'s CGUs according to

9 E\EERE (i)
R R R A

FE TR BN R E S E 5 a0 il = BREGR

operating segment. BB
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
FEIRE KA
HEER el E &t
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
=t F=t F=T
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\EFE+-_A=+—H 7,390 730 8,120
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+-_A=+—H 7,762 730 8,492

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG
related business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

MERSBEM R E SRR IAEE A
BEZHAEE %EAECAERNERE
EHtfEz AF M BIRESE 2 RIRATR
ERERAET BHASHZRDRE
ERUTHEI 2 EFFERRESR (E
A -EBEXIEERHRIR S B
BZRBHEEEBNRIAFIGERE -

ARG ERBERBHEERIR S B HE
ZEREAREZIEBRRWT

The PRC
B E

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—tF

Growth rate in sales volume HESBRX -11% - 6.3% 0% - 10%

Growth rate in sales price HEBIERX 0% -7.4% 0% — 1%

Gross margin EF = 12.9% - 27.5% 18.7% - 29.9%
Other operating costs per annum FEHEAMGS LA

(US$'000) (F=%=rx) 2,005 - 2,297 2,152 - 2,467

Long term growth rate RHEPE R X 3% 3%

Discount rate PriE = 12.5% 12.5%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in— use
calculations exceeds carrying value by US$1.6 million. A
decrease in annual sales volume growth rate of 3.6%, a
decrease in annual sales price growth rate of 3.7%, a decrease
in gross margin of 1.5%, an increase in annual operating costs
of 9%, a fall in long term growth rate of 1.8% or an increase
in discount rate of 1.2%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

BmERE (#8)
HEEBNERESAFHEUNTFHFER
T RRBEBERRLEEGH M HRE
MEHAEL - HEENERX AL FEN
P FERE: RERRBITEBRS
B XEE REHERRER -

EREDRBEEAXERAEMLERY
EHEERE EN K - prRITRE IR
AT RS S D B2 B E R -

HAb 4 e AR TS IREVR & B 7L 8 B T X
AU TEHESNHEEBRNRES -E
BEERAEEHRBRAZFIRA L
FUBREFEHAE BEERITERRE
AR K B TS B B - Ll 3§ 1O
SEDAFEAMNTFIEERA-

MABEREEAEB cEEMS - £RNE
BEAEEMSITRKSERLERE
16ABET  FIHEEERERE3I 6%
FHEBHERTHRIT% FHETR
1.5% FEBERAIERI%  REERET
P11 8% YT IR R R1.2% » BT A 38 3 %
2 BT HIBR FIERRE o
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mEMBHRME

10 SUBSIDIARIES 10 KMELT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 T ARZZE-N\F+TZA=+—HzZ=x
December 2018: ZMBAREE:
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up heldby  non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
AWML/ BRABH rEERE.  FEREERAZ
28 NREEE®RER TEEBREELY BRT/BRREFE EERLA EERLH
Directly he/d:
BERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited EREIHS EBEBREER 100 BREME1ETH
((ZERHE]) Eak
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RERIES EEARARR 100 BREE1ETH
Indirectly hefd:
EERE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s TATIRRAER 61,109,000 0
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. g ERRREER 20,177,000% T
AR
Veedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation \ietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 167,871,967 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each

industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for

export
WA (BH)RHERAT il EHBRERHEXRARAME 167,871,967 B R E &
EERRARERRIEER [Ek3 =l

BARE AGK BHRY
BERS FIRERYHO

Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise PRC, limited liability Inactive US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Co,, Ltd. company Registered capital
URKFELEEER AT PE-EREELA 2341 17,200,000% 7
HMER
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and US$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
LERACEERAR FE-FEREFLA EREBERHERE BRYRAKARK 9,800,005
£ HMER
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and U$$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
EARARBERAR TE-AREELA EREORREERE BRRAKAR  20270,000%7
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EMABELNESERAF PE-EREELA EHEEEAZENISER 254,000% 0
HHER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -

and hiochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export

Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd E3ES REERUFEBRLFNY £ER  #ME7%2,640,000,000
RAERHISERHERLA ]
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REMBRRHE

11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11 REELAFRZRE BRTHEARZ
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE HHER
(a) Investment in an associate () REERARNZRE
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows: REERRZREZEFHWT :
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+tF
us$’000 Us$’000
FEx FET
As at 1 January R—A— 3,555 3,350
Capital contribution mEEEAREE (M)
to an associate (note) 2,520 -
Share of post-tax profit of FE (R 5 & A A
an associate B 5 1% 52 44 205
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 6.119 3,555
Note: oz
There was a capital contribution of US$2,520,000 to an & 7] — FE B & A 71)E £ 2,520,000 7T ©
associate. The capital contribution was made in proportion to B TR E R R 2 IR BIEE - B
the shareholding portion of the associate, so there is no change IERFERTER REERAR2RETD
in the percentage of shareholding in the associate after capital i3 =)

contribution for the year.

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 RZEBE-NFRZFT—tF+=A
December 2018 and 2017: =t—H REEARZREEEN
T

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L HEMEZER ERITRAFHE BE#EE% EAZE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity

Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMERZERERAR HEHS 21,027,559f% G i 30 @A
BE1ETZKH

The associate is principally engaged in real estate ZEERNREERUEAREFTME
development in Vietnam. BR-
Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company EMREREREARATA/MART
and there is no quoted market price available for its B EH R 0 I #7745 TS o
shares.
There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 AEBERZBEERRAZKESR
(2017: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group's 112,000 (=T —tF:
investment in the associate. 2,632,000 70 ) Z B AN &Y ©
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e B R R MR
11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11 REEBAFIZERE BKFHELFZ
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) RN ()
(a) Investment in an associate (continued) (a) REBEQATIZBRE (&)
Reconcifiation of summarised financial information B E R E S AR
2018 2017
=F Wy o
US$'000 us$'o00
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—B—BzEERE 11,850 11,166
Increase in share capital AR 7S 3% N 8,400 -
Profit for the year FREM 146 684
Net assets as at 31 December Rt+=ZHA=+—H=2
EEFE 20,396 11,850
Interest in an associate (30%) REEE AR 2w (30% 6,119 3,555
(b) Short-term loan to an associate (b) H#FHELTZEHER

As at 31 December 2018, there is a short-term loan to
an associate of US$120,000 (2017: US$120,000) which is
unsecured, bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated
in US$ and is repayable on demand.
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REMBERRMEE
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 BEESZEMIA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
uss$’000 Us$'000
FExn F=E=r
Financial assets at amortised cost REBERATEZ
MKEE
— Long-term other receivables (Note 14) — REAHE {0 fE Y 1B
(Mt&E14) 725 1,307
— Trade receivables (Note 14) —FEWE SRR
(Mt5E14) 33,151 31,651
- Loan to an associate (Note 11(b)) —RTBERECER
(HEE11(0)) 120 120
— Other receivables — current portion — H g Y38
—BIEREL 5 2,599 2,474
— Amount due from a related party —JEN B REE AT FRIE
(Note 34(d)) (MH3E34(d)) 1,191 242
— Structured bank deposits (Note 15) —REBERITER
(BF3E15) 8,888 3,903
- Short-term bank deposits (Note 15) — R HIRITIE
(Mt5E15) 15,342 16,063
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) —-RekBReEEY
(M5E15) 34,215 49,679
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet GEEEBEBERARZ
BiE 96,231 105,439
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHK AT EZ
e’
— Trade payables (Note 18) - ERE SRR
(KT&E18) 20,875 15,772
- Other payables and accruals — Hh FE 3R &
e =4 7,056 8,860
— Amounts due to related parties —ENBRBEATRE
(Note 34(d)) (H3E34(d)) 1,391 1,660
— Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (ME19) 36,166 35,397
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet #AEEABEBERFA T
afE 65,488 61,689
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mEMBEHRRMEE
13 INVENTORIES 13 #§&
2018 2017
—s-ng —E
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Consumables JERE @ 7,184 6,308
Raw materials R # 48,078 45,820
Work in progress ER M 5,692 4,914
Finished goods SAK o 30,468 26,546
91,422 83,588
Less: Provision for impairment losses on B TEEREBERE
inventories (320) (720)
91,102 82,868
The cost of inventories of US$238,143,000 (2017: TF &R 7238,143,000% T (ZZE—+F:
US$202,763,000) has been charged in cost of sales. 202,763,000 7)) Bt ASHER A ©
The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included BERHE KA 27 &R E M &
in cost of sales are amounted to US$30,000 (2017: Nil) and 55l /30,000k L (ZE—tF E|)R
US$400,000 (2017: Nil), respectively. 400,000 70 (Z T —HF 4) o

182 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BR (2B BRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe R RMEE
14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BERBHEZRREREMEKRRIET
2018 2017
—E-—N\EF —E—+tF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties BRE=ZSTESEX 33,649 32,162
Less: loss allowance R BEEE (498) (511)
Trade receivables — net EBREZEX—FHE 33,151 31,651
Prepayments T FRIR 9,672 5,614
VAT recoverable AJ Y (B 18 {E AR 1,194 1,263
Other receivables H b U RIE 3,324 3,781
47,341 42,309
Less: non-current portion of R EAh FEUURIE 2
other receivables FEENEREL (725) (1,307)
Current portion B ER 3B & 46,616 41,002

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the
purchase of raw materials. Other receivables as at 31 December
2018 include the outstanding balance in relation to the disposal
of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24).

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based
on invoice date is as follows:

REE RN E 5 BRI R B E A 2 IR
mEERE A FERE -

TE R F BIE SR E R M R T R
H- R -—E—N\F+_H=1+—H H#
JE W SR IE B 15 A B ) R AR 2 R KRR
A ([ET24) -

BRESRERZEEHNFEINRE
60X - REFEFAAETEFPREBEESR
H MEXRREEFGHZAEER JE
WESERILBERAHZRROTAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Us$’000 Us$’000

FER F=E

0 - 30 days 0Z30K 21,372 18,627
31 - 90 days 31E90K 10,870 12,161
91 — 180 days 912180k 789 667
181 — 365 days 181£2365K 251 189
Over 365 days 365K E 367 518
33,649 32,162
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mEMBHRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BEESEFREMEKRIE (E)
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their TR MBI ERGRIE 2 MY - HRHEE
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair WRAEE N TERE -
values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2017 and RZE—tFRZT-NFF+ZA=+—
2018 are the carrying amounts of trade receivables mentioned HEE 2 &AE RS il E 5 ERR
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. HREE AEEWEFEEAETR
PEHL R o
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FEUE 5 3R 30 B ELAth FE W 5B 2 BRI B 1%
denominated in the following currencies: THEBEE -
2018 2017
=ZB-N\F —E—+F
Us$’000 UsS$’000
FERT FET
Vietnam Dong HMEE 19,680 20,299
uss$ EV 18,333 17,152
New Taiwan dollar ek 16 112
Renminbi AR 5,407 3,507
Others HAh 3,905 1,239
47,341 42,309
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REMBRRHE

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14

Loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected

loss allowance for all trade receivables.

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 reconciles to the opening loss allowance as

FE M52 55 RE 2K B Rt FE M 2R TR (#)

EUWE SRR ZERESE
AEBEERAEBY G REENFIFEL
AR EEHGEERE RAARKES
R 2 BTRM R B R E -

REE-NFE+-HA=Z+—HZEFENK
KB FRBEBBAFENBERB Y

follows: R -
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Opening loss allowance as RZZ—tFE—H—8"
at 1 January 2017, —ET—+tF+=A
31 December 2017 under = +—HRE
HKAS 39 and 1 January 2018 EB G ERE395 Kk
under HKFRS 9 AZE—NF—H—H
RIEE B B RELER
O FAE B EE 511 386
(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance RENFEEREKxPER
recognised in consolidated income 2 EERE CRd)
statement during the year 0 (13) 125
Closing loss allowance R+—A=Z+—8Z2
as at 31 December FARIBERE 498 511

The creation of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not

contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

PR E B UGRIRE L MR ER BT AT A
ARAWERITTHRA X - RERERNR
MEE—RRTAREENEE 2 RS

FEN E 5 IR B Bt R WO TR A 2 Bt 4B
MATBREREEE-
REER KREERR ELEEHE

WERR 2 BRI - AR B AU IFEE
AT G R 4R
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mEMBEHRRMEE
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 ReRBFEHYD BRERBITER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK REHBITER
DEPOSITS
2018 2017
—2-N& e
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Short-term bank deposits with original REEBB REB=A
maturity over three months ZIEERITIER 15,342 16,063
Structured bank deposits EEMIRITIER 8,888 3,903
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 34,215 49,679
58,445 69,645

As at 31 December 2018, cash at bank of US$34,003,000
(2017: US$49,447,000) and bank deposits of US$24,230,000
(2017: US$19,966,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of
US$14,950,000 (2017: US$14,106,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$38,864,000 (2017: US$38,257,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

R-BE—-NE+-_A=+—080" 4817
I £34,003,000EF L (ZF— L F:
49,447,000% Jt.) & iR 1777 524,230,000
x5t (ZZ—+%F 19,966,000 70 ) &
EEERE-

FE AP BISRITHR P 2 & $14,950,0003% 7T
(== — 44 :14,106,000F 7T ) M [E H #
FRITHR P 2 & £©38,864,000% 7L (==&
— 4 138,257,000 7T ) BB T B &
A% B R T B SNE B I A o

AEEZHSRHESEEY BHRTEF
R BB RITFRIRA T EBEE:

2018 2017

—B-N\fF —E—LF

US$'000 US$'000

FTEx TET

Vietnam Dong A 18,733 24,485
Us$ XL 24,526 29,119
Renminbi AR 14,845 15,738
Hong Kong dollar BT 91 154
New Taiwan dollar ek 247 146
Others Hip 3 3
58,445 69,645
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FE BRI
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 BEREEFEY BEERTER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK REMBITER (E)
DEPOSITS (continued)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end RIEIR > REE 2 BERFH E 10
of the reporting period were as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
Short-term bank deposits with original REEBHBRER=EAZ
maturity over three months EHIRITER 5.8% 4.3%
Structured bank deposits EHMRITIER 3.7% 4.2%
16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 B=X
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
HEEXER RGEE TEn
At 1 January 2017, R-ZZ—+F—HF—H"
31 December 2017, —E—+E+=-fA=+—8-
1 January 2018 and “E-N\F-HA-Ak
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+ZRA=+—H 0.01  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTRBREER
Par value Number
us$ of shares Uss$’000
HEXR RGEE TER
At 1 January 2017, R—E—tF—H—H"
31 December 2017, —F-tF+-A=t-8H"
1 January 2018 and —T-N\F-A-BK
31 December 2018 “E2-N\F+-A=+—-H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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S A =
RE B RRMEE
17 RESERVES 17 ¢Ef@
Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve  earnings Total
(Note (@) (Note (b))
ROBE EERE AOHE EERE REEA ot
(M#5t@)  (FaLb))
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEIL TEL TEL FEL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+4F
—HA—A 47,358 10,885 79,994 783 127,287 266,307
Comprehensive income 2HEKA
Profit for the year KERLEMN - - - - 19,061 19,061
Other comprehensive income  E#2E KA
Currency translation differences [ % =% - 2,229 - - - 2,229
Total comprehensive income  ZEKALE - 2,229 - - 19,061 21,290
Total transactions BRBAZEAREH
with owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) RS (FiEk26) - - - - (17,415)  (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 AT F
+-A=+-8 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—\4F
—HB—A 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
Comprehensive income 2HEKA
Profit for the year KERLEM - - - - 14,285 14,285
Other comprehensive income  E#2E KA
Currency translation differences [E X % - (2,057) - - - (2,057)
Total comprehensive income  Z2EKALE - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228
Total transactions BREBAZARSH
with owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) Bk S (FEk26) - - - - (11,282) (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve  EFTERE AT FfE - - - 45 (45) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—)\§
+-A=f+—-H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
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REMBRRHE

17 RESERVES (continued) 17 s (#8)
Notes: Pt 5 -
(a) Merger reserve (a) &OtEE

18

(b)

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the group reorganisation completed on 26 December
2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

(b)

FEENAHREEREN_-_ZT_F
TZAZTARBRERAEEEARKE
MEARMBRATERKNEERAA
ARMETREAMBITZRAEENZRE -

EERE

B R RIZARRARNER 210% 25 E
RAEE BEEAESERRARMERZ
50% © &R ERLE R E AR A
AR R BERENRFER 7Y
RAEBBABSARFTNAFAFZMER

& 25%

18 BEAESEER B BRARAfER

PAYABLES ®IR
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+tF
Us$’000 us$’000
FER FET
Non-current JE BN A
Long-term environmental provision RYREEE 387 233
Current BN 28
Trade payables B8 SRR 20,875 15,772
Accruals fE 2 8,567 8,089
Payable of purchase of property, ENEEDME BE R
E . SRR A
plant and equipment and Rl DA B SR SRR AN SRR
construction costs 2,517 4,127
Receipts in advance TEUL TR IR _ 1296
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) EHBE (k@) 1,993 _
Other payables H h FE A RIB 3,797 3,997
37,749 33,281
Total trade payables, accruals and F?ﬁ%"’%ﬁﬁ%
other payables ﬁ’g;—l—;ﬁ}ﬂ%ﬁ
H{th FE < FUOR AR 38,136 33,514

Annual Report 2018 3% 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBEHRRMEE
18 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 18 EMNEBLEF EHERRAMEM
PAYABLES (continued) IR ()
At 31 December 2018, the ageing of trade payables based on RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H ERNEH
invoice date is as follows: BRI OB ZBRER DT ¢
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FERT FET
0 - 30 days 0E30K 19,232 13,912
31 -90 days 31E90K 1,634 1,567
91 — 180 days 912180k - 111
181 — 365 days 181£365K - 142
Over 365 days 365K E 9 40
20,875 15,772
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, accruals AEEENBSER ETEAREM
and other payables are denominated in the following FERT IR 2 BREER T B EHE:
currencies:
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —EAF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Vietnam Dong M E 19,569 15,473
us$ EY 14,561 11,935
New Taiwan Dollar ek 1,091 1,040
Renminbi AR 2,709 3,515
Euro BX T 22 1,129
Others H 184 422
38,136 33,514
(a) Contract liabilities (a) AWERE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when

goods are delivered to customers.
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REMBERRMEE
19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 SHITHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E A
uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Non-current IR
- Long-term bank borrowings —RHERITIER
— secured — B 19,189 23,160
- Long-term bank borrowings —RHRITER
— unsecured — IR 7,804 4,654
Less: current portion of long-term W REIRITIESRZ
bank borrowings BENEAER 5 (11,296) (8,323)
15,697 19,491
Current B HA
— Short-term bank borrowings —REHERITIE R
— secured —BHR 6,352 6,313
- Short-term bank borrowings —REHRITIER
— unsecured — IR 2,821 1,270
— Current portion of long-term —RERITESRZ
bank borrowings — secured BVEAEL > — A E R 8,950 7,212
— Current portion of long-term —REBRITERZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BVERED 5 — SR 2,346 1,111
20,469 15,906
Total bank borrowings RITEERE 36,166 35,397
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mEMBHRME

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19

At 31 December 2018, the Group's bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

MITES (H)

RZTE-N\F+ZA=+—RB FEHEZ
IRITIE S AR LA HFEEE

2018 2017

—2-N\% —E—tH

Us$’000 Us$'000

FER FET

Within 1 year —FR 20,469 15,906
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMEF 7,966 8,867
Between 2 and 5 years MFEZERF 7,731 9,562
Over 5 years RAE L - 1,062
36,166 35,397

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

R

RBERR  AREEEREE
BRBHIEBEMT

2018 2017

—2-N\% —E—t

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Within 6 months 6f& A A 14,183 17,700
Between 7 and 12 months 721218 A 5,104 2,934
Between 1 and 5 years 15854 16,879 13,701
Over 5 years SELA F - 1,062
36,166 35,397

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate AEEEEZEREREQAFERSE-

their fair values.
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REMBRRHE

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 RITHE (&)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

RBREHR REBEEZERFENEM
T

2018 2017

—B-N\F —EFF

us$ EV 2.6% 2.2%
New Taiwan dollar e - 2.0%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBREBEEZERMERATESE:

2018 2017

—EB-N\F =

us$’000 Us$’000

FEx FET

us$ E 36,166 34,727
New Taiwan dollar el - 670
36,166 35,397

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

AEBBATAREAGERE:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
UsS$'000 Us$’000
TERT FET
Floating rate: PN
— Expiring within one year — R —F R H 75,584 27,849
- Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 25 32,419 25,449
Fixed rate: EE
— Expiring within one year — R —F R A - 47,330
108,003 100,628

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$144,169,000 (2017:
US$154,396,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2018 amounted to US$108,003,000 (2017: US$100,628,000).

The Group’s bank borrowings of US$25,541,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: US$29,473,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

2

AZE-N\F+ZA=+—H L&EH
B HEBE EEH144,169,000%% JT 2 $R1T
BE (ZF—+%:154,396,000% 70 ) 1F
RIBTEE BoREREM—ABRITR
B-RZZE—\F+ZA=+—8 K#H
M4 %8/5108,003,000% 7 (ZT—+4:
100,628,000E 7T) ©

REBR _FT—NF+_A=+—H
B H25,541,000 L (=T — £ &
29,473,000 70 ) Z HRITEE B AR A
BHZAREREREE-
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mEMBHRME

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EERTRIR
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary REFTSTH IR EEUNAEE S ER
differences under the liability method using the principal tax FEREENETEHERME L RE/E
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: REMEHaBEZWWT
2018 2017
—2-n% —E—t%
US$'000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —EREBIE12{E A & Yk =
recovered after more than 12 months ZIEEFEHEBE 3,238 3,263
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as EEFTISTHREEFENT
follows:
2018 2017
—2-NF —E—tH
US$'000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
At 1 January W—A—8 3,263 3,416
Credited to consolidated income statement 5+ A% & W25 &

(Note 25) (M3E25) (25) (153)
At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—8~H 3,238 3,263
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities AFEERLEAMEREERBE (Rt LK
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting SHMEREA A AR A& eE) E BT
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEE

Accelerated tax depreciation

IEBEITE
2018 2017
o —E—t%
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
At 1 January ®R—H—H 4,526 4,196
Charged to consolidated income statement  R4r A Wz X WK 129 330
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,655 4,526
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REMBRRHE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

BIEFR SR ()
EEFRBHEE

Other temporary differences

Hi B E5
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Us$'000 Us$'000
SFEER FET
At 1 January R—A— (1.263) (780)
Credited to consolidated income statement st A%&R& H b (154) (483)
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—8 (1,417) (1,263)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$924,000 (2017: US$910,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income
tax assets of US$490,000 (2017: US$2,611,000) in respect
of the unrecognised tax loss of US$1,959,000 (2017:
US$10,442,000). These tax losses for PRC corporate income
tax purposes will expire within five years. Tax losses of US$nil
(2017: US$2,323,000), US$19,000 (2017: US$5,110,000),
US$1,940,000 (2017: US$3,009,000) will expire within
one year, within two years and within three to five years
respectively.

RIS EMERE  ALBETFE
MEBRARIEZTTNF—A—BRE4L
B35 ) - 7B 2R T AN IR A B K s F iR
10% K FH R AN TR 0T o /B A AN 5 (B35
ZEFBRMERARZBRERE  BAEH
ZHREME AR R aFIEN 2 Gk =5
DRATRER ] R AR B - S I st 52 55
= S SRR L AT S B B (5924,0003%
T (=& —+%:910,000%7T) °

FEFBHREAETNABHSHEAIER
IR PR JRE RR i ) 4 R B Tt BT A4 L B0 TR 755 U
BIELER AEE BB AERATBERE
1,959,000% Jt ( == — 4 : 10,442,000
%E)Zﬂiﬁ?’éw LIEFTS & EE £490,000
Ex(ZZT—+H%:2,611,000%70) ° 5
q:lm%)ﬁfr BSHME 2 ZEHBEHEBRBR
AFERNE - BREEHEBETET(ZS—+
% :2,323,000% L) * 19,000%( 7L (=&
—-+ 4% :5,110,000% 7T ) * 1,940,000 7T
—ZF — £ 4:3,009,00057T)H B R
— R MEAARZERFRE -
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mEMBEHRRMEE
21 REVENUE 21 K&
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food NEBRE RHERBRDNINE - £t
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based EmAREBRHIXER BEZMTR
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup, W BEERE RS RITRER -BREZ
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended ET-NFRZZF—tF+_A=+—H1
31 December 2018 and 2017 were US$356,772,000 and FEHRZ W=D A /356,772,000 T
US$322,805,000 respectively. 1%£322,805,000% 7T °
22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hfilr— 28
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—tF
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net exchange (losses)/gains fEH (EE), W58 (289) 647
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERHEHE 2
held for sales (Note 8) FEMRENE & 2 s
(FfE8) 307 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WE K&
plant and equipment Bl JEi| (426) (340)
Impairment of amount due from FE W BT 8 1 B FE 45 AR e
the non-controlling interest of Z B E
a subsidiary (68) (847)
Sales of scrap materials RERHEE 454 596
Government grant TSRS+ B 219 392
Others HAt 262 487
459 935
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REMBERRMEE
23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BUEESHEZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution FTABEMA  HERDEHASZ RITERHA
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: SXZzRZAFWT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F -t
us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Changes in inventories and FEREABEREME
consumables used (Note 13) (FF3E13) 238,143 202,763
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & E & (:+9) 132 134
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T AR Y (MIRE6) 52 61
Auditor’s remuneration %2R0 B &
- Audit services —ZBIR 345 345
— Non-audit services — IR EAR 4 115
Depreciation on property, plant and WM -BERRBITE
equipment (Note 7) (PFE7) 18,429 18,170
Write-off of impairment of i sH T & RE
inventories (Note 13) (FFFE13) 30 -
Reversal of impairment of BEFERE
inventories (Note 13) (PfF3E13) (400) -
Operating leases expenses in respect of FBEELTH - BER
leasehold land, warehouses and offices MAEEERH ZHAXL 316 294
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERHMFAXZ (M:E28) 35,717 35,097
(Reversal of)/provision for loss allowance FENE 5 RE KB BB
of trade receivables (Note 14) (@), /512 (FIsE14) (13) 125
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) BTz R B (M 334(0)) 2,180 2,181
Travelling expenses ERMAX 1,629 1,484
Transportation expenses 2B 52 8,262 9,400
Advertising expenses J& & B 32 3,898 2,962
Other expenses H B 26,641 27,555
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $5& R A « §5 & K
expenses and administrative expenses DB RITH R 2% 335,365 300,686
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mEMBHRME

24

FINANCE INCOME - NET

24 BMBWBWA-FEH

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
Bank interest income RITHFBUA 842 853
Unwinding of discount of FRBR Bt B R IB 2 HTER
other receivable (Note) (MEE) 87 -
Finance income B A 929 853
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFERX (1,106) (812)
Less: amounts capitalised W ABEREEANEFIA
on qualifying assets (Note 7) (FF7E7) 274 143
Discounting effect on non-current FE T ) H fth FE UK IE 2
other receivable (Note) W2 (M) - (135)
Finance costs BI i (832) (804)
Finance income — net WA — F 58 97 49
Note: FsE -
On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited RZE—tFZAZ+ZB &I (M) R’H
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose ERARE—FEBUE=FI L —EHpH N
of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration 3,400,000% 7T 2 R fE &7 B E B P03 - TR
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed in 2017. ERBE - ZRIR T —LFTK-
According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the BEZBE I AREBEE RZE—-NF+=
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2018 of US$2,040,000 (2017: A=+ —BZHAKREEF#2,040,000F T (=
US$2,040,000) is repayable in the amount of US$680,000, US$680,000 ZT—+%:2,040,000F ) AR T NF =
and US$680,000 in 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. The repayment T-NFR-ZZTTFHHI{EiE680,000F T
of US$680,000 for 2018 was settled in January 2019. The balance is 680,000 JT }2680,000% L — & — \F 7 &

non-interest bearing.

#680,000% LR =T —NEF— AN - Beh A
Tt
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REMBRRHE

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

FiisBX

i M) 2 B IR B A A il A I AR A M A AR
BEEMARR ZHITHRENE

RErA WA RAMR 2SR RE:

2018 2017

—B-NE —E—ti

Us$'000 Us$'000

Fxx F=ET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EMBH 4,638 4,592
Under-provision of income tax BEFEMSHEBEHE TR

in previous years - 131

Total current tax ENEAFE TR 42 %8 4,638 4,723

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EEFTSH (MFFE20) (25) (153)

4,613 4,570
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mEMBHRME

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FrisMBAX (&)

A 5% BB TS A A N B P S A B4 5 B
AASETZENEDRERKRNOER
EMatENERNRTR - & T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

Us$’000 Us$'000

Fxx F=E=T

Profit before tax B %54 A 5 A 22,007 23,308
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% BI5% 2 B RFTHE 2R

(2017: 15%) (ZFE—EF:15%) 3,301 3,496

Tax effects of different tax rates TRBEZMETE 2,953 1,132

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AP 2AL 480 204

Income not subject to tax BAERBIBA - (n
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax A A RERB IS EE

losses (2,572) (672)

Under-provision in prior years BEFRBEHETR - 131
Tax losses for which no deferred income WERBRIELEMSHEE

tax asset was recognised 2% EE 451 290

Tax charge HIA X 4,613 4,570

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan

The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 17%.
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FE BRI
26 DIVIDENDS 26 B2
A final dividend of US$6,750,000 that relates to the year ended FRBZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HI
31 December 2017 was declared on 23 May 2018 and was paid FE 7 KEIMR 86,750,000 L ERZF
in 2018 (2017: US$12,740,000). —NFAEAZ+=HEREAR=-ZT—N\F
IR (ZZ—+£4:12,740,000%7T) ©
The interim dividends paid in 2018 was US$4,532,000 (0.298 RZE-NFERNOHFEHE S A
US cents per share) (2017: US$4,675,000, 0.307 US cents 4,532,000 7T (B 80.298%E L) (==
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 —+F:4,675,000F 1 FR0.307F
December 2018 of 0.265 US cents per share, amounting to a i) - R EERERFARE FIRE M
total dividend of US$4,042,000, is to be proposed for approval ENEE - \F+ZA=+—A8H1t
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated FEHRAKRE ATIR0265F IR B8
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. FEi£4,042,0003 7T © % Fhr A BIEWEER
BRI ZENARS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
Us$’000 us$’000
FER FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.298 US cents ER A 8 A EARR B
(2017: 0.307 US cents) per TREEA%0.298Z 11l
ordinary share (Z=—+t%:
0.307A1) 4,532 4,675
Proposed final dividend of 0.265 US cents  ##JRk 7 2% B & i
(2017: 0.443 US cents) per EEA%0.265%K L
ordinary share —E—tF:
0.443%1L) 4,042 6,750
8,574 11,425
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mEMBEHRRMEE
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SEREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREXRBNIERNARHEE ABE
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i A B DA A B B 1T E B AR A h A
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHHEE -

during the year.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—£F
Profit attributable to owners of the NATRE ARG T
Company (US$'000) (F%7T) 14,285 19,061
Weighted average number of 2ETERRN
ordinary shares in issue g (FaR)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BRERRN
(US cents per share) (FRRZEAL) 0.94 1.25
(b) Diluted (b) #%
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per HE-_Z—\FER-ZT—+tF+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+ —HILFE HRUmEST
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. B e REESAENEGRERNZT
EIE
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 ERARHMAX (BEEEHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2018 2017
=Y Wy Bt
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE K& REM 29,002 28,128
Directors’ bonus (Note 30) BRI (Mi7E30) 1,445 1,921
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iR {Rk & Ak &
— E R ARG 2,783 2,649
Other employee benefits Hth {2 5 128 7 2,487 2,399
35,717 35,097
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REMBRRHE

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 BRFEFIEE
As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group BEERAESEERE ARERENC
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in ZENFTZA=+T—HBURERANK
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The HEERMEREMNEKNST S -ZEE
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of EURERZ-ZZEN\F+_A=+—HZ
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly PR 75 o BB & & 18 AR 7% B BB AT 7S 8 A BRI M
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. FHREED -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January n—HA—8 1,447 1,386
Current service cost BIVER AR 75 5 2 110 176
Payments (S (79) (115)
As at 31 December mt+ZRA=+—H 1,478 1,447
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrfEANFEEBsE/RERmT:
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—tF
Discount rate g = 9% 9%
Salary growth rate IE®REX 3.0% - 7.9% 3.0% -8.0%
Expected years of service remaining 8 HA Tl 64 AR 75 FF IR 14-17 years 14-18 years®F
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective BEH-_ZEENF-A—BRERZHE
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to eERBE AREELEYEERRE
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its REEZEELERBEEIELHET RN
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment EHZEHTE ASEBREEMNRE
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The F-ZERFRINBALNEERBESR
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when FIF L -

they are due.
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFRARES (FRAFER (8
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622K ) 3831 AT (KBFEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SEH)HA (B622GE)RFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAUBEZHEE)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERITHRAEZ#ME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREERSMITHRAER ZZFHED
executive is set out below: /IR
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BE-Z-NF+=ZA=+—-HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
HESEA
ERELTY
Expm EWEAREHEN
¥ RERENER ENERHE  RHBBEAS
Name of Director j £3:34 e (Hita) BEREA (FizEb) Fifefts  ERzHBMHE &t
Us$'00 Uss'000 Uss'000 US$'000 US$'000 USs'000 US$'000
TER T£n FEn TEn RE TEn Tix
Executive Director HTES
M. Yang, Tou-Hsiung B L 1 383 09 17 - - 790
Mr. Yang, Cheng BiExE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #3854 (iic) 1 380 416 17 - - 814
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRUEE - 181 300 17 - - 498
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BEills - 181 300 17 - - 498
Non-executive Director FanES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng EHERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRRGLE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BHUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BELEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BRI £ 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa (Note (i) s (M) 1 - - 8 - - 9
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen ffia%E 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung-Fong (Note (i) E388 5 4 (Mizk(i)) - - - 4 - - 4
Total BE 12 1,085 1,445 176 - - 2,118
Note: AT -

(i) Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018.

(i) Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 22
October 2018.
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REMBRRHE

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFRARES (FRAFEL (8
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E)E383E AR (HEEHF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SEH)NRH ($6226E)REFE L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THRAUREZHE) (&)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERITHRAEZ#ME (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-Z-—tH+=-A=+—-HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
RERER
ERARAR
BIm EMBEARSHD
i EHRRENET RICEAE  EBBEMN
Name of Director j £3:2 e (Hfsta) Wi (fftb) FfEfE ERZEEHE At
US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEL TEL FEL RESD iR RE FEL
Executive Director HEEs
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRERE 1 343 572 15 - - 931
Mr. Yang, Cheng BELE - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ©) B350 (I iEc) - 380 549 15 - - 944
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 400 15 - - 59
M. Yang, Kun-Chou ks E 181 400 15 - - 596
Non-executive Director 84783
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng EBRRE - - 14 - - 1
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRAGE 1 - - 14 - - 1
Independent non-executive ~ BYEHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BELRE 3 - - 14 - - 17
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RABLL 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa EE S 3 1 - - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen MR E 2 - - 14 - - 16
Total aE 10 1,085 1,921 158 - - 3,174
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

30

EFRIRES (FELFGH (5
622E)E383& - AF (HFEEF
REH)HRG (F622GE)REEL
THRAUREZHEE) (1)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHAEZHMS (F)

(continued)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to
Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESRERESZRY ESHERAQAY
(FRAXAAAENBARNZES) HWBAREHEEN
BEXNRERZ2EMHSE HttRBC B EU 2 EtM e B8 Ehs it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ “E-tF —E-N\E Tt —E-N\E —Z-tF
US$’000 Us$'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TERn TER TEn TET TEn TER
2,718 3,174 - - 2,718 3,174

Note: B & :

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (a) YTNF—REENHFCRT
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in BRZATIRELEEEARAR
connection with the management of the affairs of the FXEMBATIEEBEED
Company or its subsidiary undertakings. H th BR 5 M 4 2 A ok fE U )

B o

(b)  Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling (b) A REMEMNREEKRE
allowance. Ao

() The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate () ZEFFRTARRITRER

disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2017: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2017: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2017: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: same).

EFSBEIRES(FEAFIGEH (8
622 ) E383E AR (HEEEF
SEH) N (F622GE ) RE#E L
TRAAKEZHE) (8)

(B) EFERMNKER
REE-Z-N\F+=ZA=+—H
EFE WEAESRHEERAR
A sk LB B8 2 R /9 B 7 BT IR A A B
B NEMEREN (=215
HE) -

© EBZHLEA
RHE-F—\F+-A=+—A
L AR E X LR
—F—tF AR -

(D) BEKESHEEMAE=FRHEH
KE
REE_F-N\F+-_A=+—H
WLEE - WEpIRHEEERB M
E=ZFTRHERE(ZZ—LF I8
[l)

(E) FRNUES ZIZZEZEHNEA
BEENZEZEENAREEERR
HANER EERREGBIEZNE
#
RBEE-FT-N\F+-_A=t—H
ILFE TENEE SREFEFR
HEEABRBEZEEETNERE
ERAXMAFLROER BERK
Hh2 5 (Z2—tF:8R) -

(F) ESRXS RPAEGHTNWEKRRE
##
BRI RE34RT IR R & SN M ARNF R
AEEAERIR R AA R R
HMAEEHEBBERAMARAEEE
EYEEREERRENEFAERX
R RFEIRAHN(ZFE—LF A
[l)
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2017: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within
the following band:

30 ESEHRIRER (FRLFGH (8
622% ) $3831F ' AF (HEEEF
REH)HG (B622GE)REEL
THRAAREEE) (#)

(G) ZEBEMEAL
AEEBAFEANREBEEHEAL
BRENE (ZT—tF R BT
BEx RENMET R EXZ AP
BB

HIATZMERNIATEE:

Number of individuals

AR
2018 2017
—2-N\% iz
US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001 7T
- 155,000% 7T 1 1

(H) Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

(H REESSSREEASHHN
BemnIA TR :

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\fF s
US$55,000 — US$105,000 55,0003 7T

- 105,000 2 4

US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,0003 7T
- 130,000 T 3 3

US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001% 7T
- 155,000% 7T 3 1
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N EE
31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 FEHERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations () XBELEZES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTER FET
Profit before income tax K5 PiT 45 250 B D& A 22,007 23,308
Adjustments for: MATIEE BE:
- Finance income (Note 24) — B (FMi5E24) (929) (853)
— Finance costs (Note 24) — B (Fis24) 832 804
— Share of post tax profit of an —JEEEEE QA
associate (Note 11) F B 15 g A
(PEE11) (44) (205)
— Write-off of impairment of — T ERE
inventories (Note 13) (MF5E13) 30 -
- Reversal of impairment of —EEFERE
inventories (Note 13) (FFsE13) (400) -
- Depreciation of property, plant —WE BEREEITE
and equipment (Note 7) (FFaE7) 18,429 18,170
— (Reversal of)/provision for —EWE 5 RFRE
impairment of trade (BB, HE
receivables (Note 14) (KizE14) (13) 125
— Amortisation of intangible — B EEEE
assets (Note 9) (KEE9) 132 134
— Amortisation of land use rights — I AR
(Note 6) (HfzEe6) 52 61
— Impairment of amount due — R —ERB AR
from the non-controlling FEPE AR M 2 KB 2
interest of a subsidiary A (MEE22)
(Note 22) 68 847
- Loss on disposal of property, —REME BE &
plant and equipment BBz EE
(Note 22) (Kt3E22) 426 340
- Gain on disposal of assets held —HERFEREZEEZ
for sale (Note 22) Yoz (ME3E22) (307) -
40,283 42,731
Change in working capital (excluding &E& £ &
the effects of exchange differences (REtEZEEHREEEZ
on consolidation) ERERETE)
— Inventories —1FE (7.864) (17,586)
— Trade receivables, prepayments —ERE SRR
and other receivables B RER
H fth FE KRR (5,043) 591
- Trade payables, accruals and —-ERE SRR
other payables FEstER R
H A [ FRIE 3,298 (4,597)
- Net changes in balances with —HEBEARILHZ
related companies HE)FEEE (1,218) 582
Cash generated from operations EBELZAS 29,456 (9,122)
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mEMBHRME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Cash generated from operations (continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

ReaRaRBRME (M)

(a)

EBEEZRE (&)
EGARTRERN HEVE K
FEREEZMERERRE:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

Us$’000 Us$'000

Fxx FET

Net book amount (Note 7) FREFEE (FaE7) 512 489
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BFEREHZ

plant and equipment (Note 22) B8 (KI5E22) (426) (340)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WMELREBZ

plant and equipment FT1S50IR 86 149

(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (b) (fEF) BLFEIHEK

This section sets out an analysis of net (debt)/cash and
the movements in net (debt)/cash for each of the periods

AN R 25 ME 2 (BF)
ReFROME (B B ¥R

presented. BE) o
Net (debt)/cash (&%) "B FHE
2018 2017
—2-n% —E—t%
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 34,215 49,679
Bank borrowings — repayable BITBER—R—FAEE
within one year 36,166 35,397
Bank borrowings — repayable BITBER-—R—FREE
after one year 36,166 35,397
Net (debt)/cash (&%) HeFE (1.951) 14,282
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 34,215 49,679
Gross debt — fixed interest rates &7 M5 — B F A X 36,166 35,397
Gross debt — variable interest rates B R — F B F| X 36,166 35,397
Net (debt)/cash (&%) HeFHE (1.951) 14,282
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REMBRRHE

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (continued)

31

FeaRaRBRME (M)

(b) (E%) ReFEZHER (&)

Liabilities from

Assets financing activities
BE REMEZTHZEE
Bank Bank
Cash  borrowings borrowings
and cash  due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year
RBERk R-—FRIE R-F£IH
BeZEY ZRTER ZRTEX
US$'000 US$’000 Us$'000
FT=r FET FET
Net cash as at R-Z—+tF-A—-H2
1 January 2017 BeRE 55,210 (12,620) (24,190)
Cash flows Reng (6,462) 5,036 (3,623)
Foreign exchange adjustments AN 35 2 931 - -
Other non-cash movement Hi3ERe28F - (8,322) 8,322
Net cash as at RZE—+tF
31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—-H2
BeFE 49,679 (15,906) (19,491)
Cash flows HAens (14,307) 6,733 (7,502)
Foreign exchange adjustments I B (1,157) - -
Other non-cash movement Em3rRe &8 - (11,296) 11,296
Net debt as at R=B-N\F
31 December 2018 t=ZA=+-RH2
EHRE 34,215 (20,469) (15.697)
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mEMBHRME

32 COMMITMENTS 32

(@) Capital commitments
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

&iE

(a) EFEE
AEBERBERRDITNERESL
ZEAXBWT

2018 2017
2% —E—tf
Us$’000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
Contracted but not provided for EEESLEE N2

Property, plant and equipment Y- BB MEE 2,493 1,864

Investment in an associate REE AR 2RE
(Note 11) (M5E11) 112 2,632
2,605 4,496

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

(b) REBAMNEE
AEERE A RELEEHAR
RS EREEERBRFENT

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
No later than one year TBR—F 308 139

Later than one year and EBR—FETERAETF
no later than five years 637 422
Later than five years BRAEF 1,926 2,032
2,871 2,593

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HARARE

At 31 December 2018, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$128,600,000
(2017:US$120,426,000), of which US$79,067,000 (2017:
US$74,249,000) has not been utilised.
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REMBRRHE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(a)

The table below summarises the related parties and

3 BRAEALES

REESKIERTAGRRE ERKER
EEBELE BIELE - BKELE B
WA GEINEE  BKERE  BR
N E BB AE BREE BB
T BB REGRIEL L

(@ TERBALAR-_Z-—NF+_A

nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

December 2018:

Related party
BEEAL

ST -BZBEMEALREERE
Bay BRI

Relationship with the Group
SEAREEHER

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”)
w1

Dacin International Holdings Ltd.

4 ek
Sl

KA R AR A A (
EMRER R AR AR
Capron Group Limited
Capron Group Limited

A substantial shareholder of the Company

ARBMEERR

An associate of the Group
RE BT E R A
A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—MEERRERARESZQ

(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAXAEEATEKBEFEITNHE
out in the normal course of the Group’s business, are as AREBEATRSWT:
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
ks FEx FE
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan ARERTHEESE R (i) 8,687 5,901
Technical support fee paid to A& R A AT B
Taiwan Vedan XEE (i) 2,180 2,181
Agency commission income A B IR ST AR
received from Taiwan Vedan REMSHA (ii) 2 4
Notes: hza
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) AAREERE  MAMEATE

the related party were conducted in the normal course of

business.

(ii) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

7 B B A EE BRI
e
i) AATEERA REXSEEE

EmiEhET WAREREG
EE T E -
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mEMBHRME

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BRAEALRS ()
() Key management compensation () FEEEAEMS
The compensation paid or payable to key management, REERBENIENEEZERA
including all executive directors and senior management, B(BEMERTESLARER
for employee services is shown below. [B) 2 HME T -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
Fxx F=E=T
Salaries and other short-term FekHEMEHESRER
employee benefits 3,469 3,903
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HEEREATZFEREH
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following RZEBE-N\FT+ZA=+—0H K&
significant balances with the related parties: MEEREEALCFEHERIT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5% FEx F=E=T
Current: BNER :
Amount due from Taiwan FEN & B BR Y 2 308
Vedan (i) 1,191 242
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan JEfT & BT 2 FKIA (i) (1,391) (1,647)
Short term loan to an associate HTEE AR Z
5ERER (i) 120 120
Amount due to Capron J& 15 Capron Group
Group Limited Limited,Z 318 (iii) - (13)

Notes: B AL

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) BIER TR PTE &S AR
free and have no fixed terms of payment. RERERETEERSA-

(i)~ The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears iy HKIBEARZEEETAER
interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and is RFFERAEF B AETTE
repayable on demand. B WAERERKEER:

(i) The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured, (i) Capron Group Limited Z % # & £
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within W8 UETEE WAR
one year. —FREE-
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REMBRRHE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 FNFREARRREARED
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company TAREEEER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
Note UsS$‘000 Us$'000
ig=s FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REE NG ZIRE 6,308 3,788
Loan to a subsidiary BTHBRRZER - 2,200
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 172,338 172,018
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE B B A B 3k0B 39,245 49,111
Short-term loan to an associate BFBERNAZREER 120 120
Short-term loan to a subsidiary BTHBARZEHER 1,200 -
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT I B H A fE W sk IE 679 678
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITER 2,839 1,928
Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEY 3,022 14,555
Total current assets REBEELAE 47,105 66,392
Total assets EEH#E 219,443 238,410
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners of RNFIEE AR
the Company
Share capital [N 15,228 15,228
Reserves G (Note (a))
(M) 199,803 218,874
Total equity EREE 215,031 234,102
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mEMBHRME

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

FOAFRERRERGEMED ()

rRARNEERER (H)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note Uss$’000 Us$'000
s FEx FET
LIABILITIES &8fE

Current liabilities REBEHE
Accruals and other payables JEET B A R H A fE S 5RIR 3,017 3,291
Bank borrowings RITEE - 670
Current income tax liabilities RIS AR 4 -
Amount due to a related party FERT B BEEA LT HRIB 1,391 347
Total current liabilities REEEEE 4,412 4,308
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEE 219,443 238,410

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
%R Rk

Director Director

EF EF
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REMBRRHE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 ENFEEAGRERGRED (M)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TXAREEEER (&)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company M 5Ea) AR A EE
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
MR E R
Hib k% EREE REERF Sk
Us$'000 Us$’000 Uss$'o00 Us$'000
FEx FET FxET FET
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZF—+F—H—H 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
Comprehensive loss 2EEBR
Loss for the year REEEE - - (7,332) (7,332)
Other comprehensive income Hftt 2 E WA
Currency translation difference  [E ¥ Z % - 105 - 105
Total comprehensive ZHEKBA (FE) B
income/(loss) - 105 (7,332) (7,227)
Dividends paid B E - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 NZT—+fF
+=Z—A=+—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
At 1 January 2018 RZZT—-—NF—H—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year REEZERE - - (7,704) (7,704)
Other comprehensive income H i ZmEU A
Currency translation difference [ X =5 - (85) - (85)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBEAHE - (85) (7,704) (7.789)
Dividends paid EIRE - - (11,282) (11,282)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZB—-N\F
+=-—H=+—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803

Annual Report 2018 3% 217



